East Sussex
County Council

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment,
Councillor Claire Dowling

MONDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 10.00 AM

CC2, COUNTY HALL, LEWES

++Please note, the Lead Member will not be present in person, but will be taking the
decisions remotely++

AGENDA
1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 January 2021 (Pages 3 - 4)
2 Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under
the terms of the Code of Conduct.

3 Urgent items
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take
at the appropriate part of the agenda.

4 Notice of Motion - Safety on the A259 (Pages 5 - 14)

Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport
5 Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3
PHILIP BAKER

Assistant Chief Executive
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent
LEWES BN7 1UE 5 February 2021

Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,
01273 481935
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk

NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this
meeting will be broadcast live on its website is accessible at:
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm

eastsussex.gov.uk


http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LEAD MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Transport and Environment, Councillor Claire
Dowling, on 18 January 2021 at County Hall, Lewes

++ The Lead Member was not present in person, but took the decisions remotely ++

Councillor Godfrey Daniel spoke on item 4 (see minute 27)

25 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 17 NOVEMBER 2020

25.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 17
November 2020.

26 REPORTS
26.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.

27 BUS STOP CLEARWAY PROPOSALS IN HASTINGS

27.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport, together with the comments of the objector which had been provided by email
following publication of the agenda.

DECISIONS
27.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

Q) note the objections to the application of a ‘Clearway’ markings at the bus stop set out in
this report, and,

2) approve the application of the ‘Clearway’ marking to improve accessibility to the bus stop
and promote its use for all members of the community.

Reasons

27.3 Improvements to the public transport infrastructure in Hastings and Bexhill will help to
improve passenger accessibility at bus stops and support the punctuality of bus services across
both towns and help engage more people to use public transport. In turn, this will contribute
towards the County Council’s commitment of net zero carbon emissions by 2050 and the
Government’s decarbonising transport agenda.

27.4  This bus stop is identified by the Transport Hub Team and the bus operator as one
where buses are unable to access the kerbside due to on-street parking. The application of the
Clearway markings will improve accessibility for passengers at the bus stop and support the
overall punctuality of buses accessing this stop.

28 DELEGATION OF POWERS TO DECLARE A LOCAL NATURE RESERVE - NINFIELD

28.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and
Transport, together with the comments in support of the recommendations from Councillor
Bentley, the Local Member.

DECISIONS

Page 3



28.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:

) agree the delegation to Ninfield Parish Council of the County Council’s power under
section 21 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 to designate as a local
nature reserve land at Church Wood,;

(2) to recommend to the Governance Committee to agree the delegation to Ninfield Parish
Council of the Council’s power under sections 20 and 21(4) of the National Parks and Access to
the Countryside Act 1949 to make byelaws in relation to land at Church Wood designated as a
local nature reserve; and

3) delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport to enter into
agreements and to take any necessary actions in respect of the above recommendation.

Reasons
28.3 The Delegation will support Ninfield Parish Council and enable an increase in well

managed ecological sites for the benefit of the local community, in line with the East Sussex
Environment Strategy.

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Report to: Lead Member for Transport and Environment

Date of meeting: 15 February 2021

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Title: Notice of Motion: Safety on the A259

Purpose: To consider a Notice of Motion from Councillors Lambert and

Grover requesting:

e astudy is undertaken and proposals developed to improve road
safety for car users, cyclists and pedestrians at all junctions with
the A259 in Seaford,;

o |lower speed limits are imposed and enforced on the approaches
to Seaford;

e safer crossing points are provided at key points on the A259
including at the Bishopstone junctions.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Lead Member is asked to endorse and recommended that the County Council does not
support the three elements of the Notice of Motion, as set out in paragraph 1.1 under ‘East
Sussex County Council agrees to request the Cabinet to’ for the reasons set out in Section 3 of
the report.

1 Background Information

1.1. The following Notice of Motion has been submitted by Councillor Lambert, and seconded
by Councillor Grover:

“Members will be aware of the two accidents in two days that closed the A259 in Seaford at the
junction with Marine Parade. Statistically, the roads in East Sussex are among the highest in the
country for killed and seriously injured people. Seaford is the biggest town in Lewes district and is
continuing to grow.

East Sussex County Council agrees to request the Cabinet to:

e undertake a proper survey of the whole town, not just the Buckle by-pass, with particular
focus on all the junctions with the A259, to identify the areas of greatest risk to both car
users, cyclists and pedestrians, and to come up with some concrete proposals to enhance
road safety. The County Council is already undertaking a review of the A259 from Seaford
to Brighton in terms of congestion and the safety of both car users, pedestrians and
cyclists should be part of that;

e impose lower speed limits on the approaches to Seaford and to work with partners to
ensure these are enforced;

e provide safe pedestrian crossings at key points of the A259 including at the Bishopstone
junctions.”

1.2. Inline with County Council practice, the matter has been referred by the Chairman to the
Lead Member for Transport and Environment for consideration to provide information and inform
debate on the Motion. The Lead Member’s recommendation on this Notice of Motion will be
reported to the Council at its meeting on 23 March 2021.

Page 5



2 Supporting Information
A259 - Context

2.1 The A259 is a primary coastal route that runs between the County boundary at Telscombe
Cliffs and Pevensey Roundabout where it becomes trunk road and part of the Strategic Road
Network. The Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) flow on the section between Newhaven and
Seaford is approximately 25,950 vehicles per day (2019 figures).

2.2 The road is multi-functional and accommodates local intra-urban journeys along the
sections in Eastbourne and through the coastal towns of Seaford, Newhaven, Peacehaven and
Telscombe Cliffs as well as longer distance inter urban journeys between these settlements. The
inconsistent quality of the A27 corridor, particularly between Lewes and Polegate, means that
traffic uses the A259 coastal corridor as an alternative route.

A259 Corridor Study

2.3 In December 2018, the A259 was identified as part of the Government’s Major Road
Network (MRN) of economically important local authority maintained A class roads which sits
between the Strategic Road Network, managed by Highways England, and the local network
managed by the County Council as highway authority.

2.4 In establishing the MRN, Government made funding of between £20m and £50m
available for MRN schemes through the National Roads Fund, with an expectation of a local
contribution of at least 15% being made to schemes. Department for Transport (DfT) guidance
identifies the types of schemes that are eligible for MRN funding include packages of
improvements which may include elements of safety, widening, new alignment and junction
improvements as well as traffic management and the use of smart technology and data to raise
network performance.

2.5 Transport for the South East (TfSE) was asked to coordinate with its constituent local
transport authorities on potential MRN schemes across their geography that could come forward
as ‘early entry’ MRN schemes, commencing before Apr 2023 or for delivery between 2023 and
2025. TfSE assessed all the schemes put forward against the MRN criteria as set out by DfT, as
well as TfSE’s strategic objectives for the region which focus on sustainable economic growth,
improved quality of life and the environment. Following this assessment TfSE identified that the
A259 South Coast Road Corridor between Pevensey and Brighton & Hove as one of their ten
priority MRN schemes for submission to Government.

2.6 Following the adoption of their Transport Strategy in July 2020, TfSE are currently
undertaking their Outer Orbital Corridor Study which includes the A259. The study will consider
strategic and regional significant interventions that could be delivered to support the delivery of
the Transport Strategy vision and objectives by 2050. The study is programmed for completion in
September 2021.

2.7 In addition, the County Council is planning to undertake a A259 South Coast Road
corridor study focussed on the corridor between Eastbourne and Brighton. Complementing the
TfSE study, the study will be multi-modal and using an appropriate evidence base will seek to
identify localised interventions for public transport, improvements to enable people to cycle or
walk for all or part of their journeys, alongside localised road and junction capacity improvements
and the potential use of smart technology along and around the hinterland of this corridor.

2.8 The outcomes of both studies will, in turn, inform the development of a Strategic Outline
Business Case to Government to make the case for MRN funding. Work on the A259 corridor
study will start this financial year and is expected, alongside the Strategic Outline Business Case,
to take between 12 and 18 months to complete.

2.9 Subject to the approval of the Strategic Outline Business Case by Government, further
work will be required to progress to the Outline Business Case and then Final Business Case
stages which can take up to a further two to three years to complete. Therefore, it is expected it

Page 6



will be 2024/25 at the earliest before any MRN funding would be available for delivering the
preferred package of interventions. In addition, a local contribution of at least 15% would need to
be provided as part of any funding submission to Government.

2.10 Inresponse to previous concerns raised about the Bishopstone Road, Marine Parade and
Hill Rise junctions with the A259, a feasibility study to consider potential improvements was
commissioned through the County Council’s capital programme of local transport improvements
in 2018/19.

2.11 This study identified and modelled several potential junction and accessibility
improvements to address concerns about road safety and community severance between the
Bishopstone Road and Hill Rise junctions. These included the introduction of traffic signals and
standard roundabouts at the Bishopstone Road, Marine Parade and Hill Rise junctions as well as
a gyratory incorporating the Marine Parade and Hill Rise junctions.

2.12 The findings of the study show that, apart from the introduction of a gyratory, it would not
be possible to formalise the current situation without creating significant and potentially
unacceptable delays on the A259. However, the introduction of a gyratory would potentially
require land acquisition and be prohibitively expensive to implement. Consequently, the
outcomes of the study will be fed into and considered through the wider A259 South Coast Road
corridor study.

Road Safety

2.13 Local authorities have a statutory duty to identify crashes on their road network and put in
place a programme of works to address these crashes. Each year the Road Safety Team
identifies sites (for urban areas a radius of 25m is applied) that display a minimum of four
personal injury crashes recorded within the previous three year period; three years is the
nationally accepted timeframe that represents the most up to date situation whilst giving
adequate data to assess if there is a causation theme that can be addressed by conventional
traffic management or engineering measures. This informs an annual road safety assessment
programme of identified areas of concern and where further investigation may be required. Sites
are then treated on a priority basis within the funding available.

2.14 Last year's assessment identified 75 sites on the county council managed road network
that met these criteria. Within the Seaford area, only the A259 Hill Rise junction was listed and
was 46™ of the prioritised 75 sites identified on the local road network. A full review using the
latest 3 year’s crash data (up to December 2020) will be undertaken in due course when a full
validation process has been completed. As a result, this may change the relative priority of this
site within the annual road safety assessment programme.

2.15 However, as the current review process in place identifies more sites than we are able to
treat with the level of funding that is available, and due to the relative priority of the Hill Rise
scheme compared to other locations in the county, as highlighted in section 2.12 any safety
improvements at the Hill Rise junction would need to be considered as part of the A259 South
Coast Road corridor study.

Imposing and enforcing lower speed limits

2.16 Itis recognised nationally that the majority of drivers travel at the speed they consider to
be safe for the conditions of the road based on their assessment of the local environment. Local
Speed Limit Policy (PS05/02) sets out the principles for setting speed limits in the county. This
indicates that 30mph speed limits are appropriate in areas with frontage access indicating to
drivers the need to reduce their speed with a mean vehicle speed below 33mph. The policy
highlights that 40mph speed limits are appropriate in less built up areas where properties are set
back and where the mean average speeds need to be below 42mph whilst 50mph limits are
appropriate where there is limited frontage and average vehicles speeds of 52mph. A copy of
Policy PS05/02 is included in Appendix 1.

Page 7



2.17 The introduction of any change to a speed limit needs to be supported by the Police and
self-enforcing, potentially through the introduction of engineering measures which are appropriate
for the function of the road to reduce vehicle speeds. However, if engineering measures are not
appropriate or cannot be justified then a higher speed limit will be considered.

2.18 The section of the A259 west of Seaford was one of several routes identified for
investigation as part of a previous assessment of A and B-class roads in the county. The
investigation resulted in the introduction of a 50mph speed limit on the section in March 2017.
The extent of the speed limit was carefully considered with Sussex Police prior to it being
introduced to ensure it aligned with a driver's assessment of the road environment.
Consequently, it was agreed to start the limit approximately 400 metres to the northwest of
Bishopstone Road as it is on this part of the road that the setback properties become visible to
drivers. It also meant that Bishopstone Road, Marine Parade and Hill Rise junctions were
included in the extent of the 50mph speed limit. This has shown to produce a largely self-
enforcing speed limit.

2.19 In addition, a petition to introduce a 40mph speed limit, enforced with speed cameras,
was considered by the Lead Member for Communities and Safety at his decision making meeting
on 23 July 2019. The Lead Member resolved that a 40mph speed limit on the A259 between
Seaford and Newhaven was not a priority for the County Council and that the location did not
meet the Sussex Safer Roads Partnership criteria for speed cameras. To introduce an effective
40mph speed limit on this section of the A259 would require a significant level of engineering
work to ensure that vehicle speeds are brought down. This could not be justified in terms of the
potential impact to casualty reduction.

Pedestrian crossings at key points on the A259, particularly at Bishopstone junctions

2.20 There are numerous crossings and types along the A259 through Seaford ranging from
informal crossing points through to signalised crossings. These are focussed on locations where
there are desire lines to cross the A259 and their type will be influenced by traffic speed and flow
as well as the level of pedestrian activity.

2.21 As highlighted in section 2.7, the County Council is planning to undertake a A259 South
Coast Road corridor study which will be multi-modal and seek to identify improvements, including
upgrading or new crossings, to enable people to walk for all or part of their journeys. The
outcomes of the A259 Bishopstone junctions study referred to in sections 2.10 to 2.12 alongside
the local assessment for Seaford which has supported the development of the draft Local Cycling
and Walking Infrastructure Plan for the county will be used as part of the evidence base to inform
potential crossing improvements on the A259 corridor.

2.22 However, the delivery of any crossing improvements or other interventions along the
corridor is dependent on either securing MRN or other external (e.g. Community Infrastructure
Levy) funding or a standalone scheme being prioritised and allocated County Council Integrated
Transport funding within the capital programme of local transport improvements.

3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Firstly, the Notice of Motion requests that the Cabinet undertake a multi-modal study
which considers the needs of all road users, particularly at the junctions with the A259, and
identifies proposals to address these. Two studies are already underway or planned to consider
these issues. The Transport for the South East’s Outer Orbital Corridor Study which is currently
underway will consider strategic and regionally significant interventions on the A259 corridor. The
County Council led A259 South Coast Road corridor study planned to start this year will identify,
using appropriate evidence, more localised interventions for pedestrians, cyclists, public transport
users as well congestion and safety measures along the corridor. Both these studies will then
inform the development of a business case to secure Major Road Network funding from

Page 8



Government to deliver the preferred package of interventions. As this request is already being
actioned, it is recommended that this element of the Notice of Motion is not supported.

3.2 Secondly, the Notice of Motion requests that lower speed limits on the approaches to
Seaford are imposed and enforced. The setting and changes to speed limits are undertaken in
accordance with the Local Policy PS05/02. A 50mph speed limit was introduced on the A259
western approach into Seaford in 2017 and post-implementation surveys identified that the limit
was largely self-enforcing. Previous requests have been made to reduce this speed limit further
to 40mph however for this to be effective would require a significant level of engineering work to
ensure that vehicle speeds are brought down, did not meet the Sussex Safer Roads Partnership
criteria for speed cameras and therefore could not be justified. We will continue to work with the
Police to ensure the enforcement of speed limits, however their setting needs to be appropriate to
the local environment as set out in our Speed Limit Policy. Therefore, this element of the Notice
of Motion is not supported.

3.3 Finally, the Notice of Motion also requests that pedestrian crossings are provided at key
points of the A259 including at the Bishopstone junctions. To ensure a holistic approach is taken,
the provision of pedestrian crossing improvements at the Bishopstone junction and other
locations on the A259 will be considered as part of the wider A259 South Coast Road corridor
study. However, the delivery of an interventions identified through the study, including pedestrian
crossing improvements at junctions on the A259, will be subject to securing MRN or other
external funding or standalone schemes being prioritised for county council funding and inclusion
in the County Council’s capital programme of local transport improvements. With no funding
currently attached to the provision of such improvements, it is recommended that this part of the
Notice of Motion is not supported.

RUPERT CLUBB
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport

Contact Officer: Jon Wheeler
Tel. No. 01273 482212 / 07919 298435
Email: jon.wheeler@eastsussex.gov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS

Councillors Grover, Lambert

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

LEAD MEMBER — COMMUNITIES AND SAFETY
POLICY SUMMARY

LOCAL SPEED LIMITS PS05/02

PURPOSE OF POLICY

To achieve a safe distribution of speeds consistent with the speed limit that reflects
the function of the road and the road environment

SPECIFIC POLICIES

1. On trunk roads, speed limits (in common with other orders regulating traffic)
are the responsibility of the Department for Transport (DfT), through its
executive agency, Highways England. The County Council has no jurisdiction
over this class of road.

2. On all other roads Orders are made by the County Council subject to the
statutory requirements for the advertisement of the proposals and
considerations of any objections.

3. The principle determinant of a proposed speed limit should be the appearance
and character of the road as described in Appendix A.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Adherence to the criteria ensures consistency in the introduction of Local Speed
Limits on a countywide basis and supports the work that has been undertaken with
neighbouring authorities. It is recognised that, where appropriate, a lower speed limit
can assist in the reduction of the number and severity of casualties and help to
improve environmental aspects and quality of life for local residents. Reference
should always be made to the latest national guidance available.

References — Further Information Date of
Approval

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

Department for Transport — Circular Roads 01/2006
Department for Transport — Circular Roads 02/2006
Department for Transport — Traffic Advisor Leaflet 1/04
Department for Transport — Traffic Advisory Leaflet 2/06
Department for Transport- Circular Roads 01/2013

H & T Committee — Agenda Item 10

H & T Committee — Agenda Item 18 17.03.1993
; . 19.10.1994
Cabinet Committee — Agenda ltem 5
: 15.11.2000
Lead Member for Transport and Environment — Agenda Iltem 11 25 06.2007
" o .06.
Lead Member for Communities & Safq%g%‘%qda ltem 77 16/03/2018

APPENDIX 2




SPECIFIC POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4. Subject to paragraphs 5 and 6 below, villages may be considered for the
introduction of a 30 mph speed limit in accordance with recommendations of
DfT guidance for setting local speed limits providing that there are 20 or more
properties served by private accesses which adjoin the main road (on one or
both sides of the road), located over a length of not less than 600 metres, and
clearly visible to drivers.

5. Speed limits should be set in accordance with the table below :-

Speed Average
Limit Speed
Below
20 24
30 33
40 42
50 52
60 62

6. Where the average speed is above the figures quoted in paragraph 5 for a
particular speed limit being investigated then, subject to available resources,
either :-

a) Where the history of injury crashes at the site justifies the necessary
expenditure, engineering measures appropriate to the function of the road
should be investigated to reduce vehicle speeds below the figures quoted in
paragraph 5 for a particular speed limit. If this can be achieved a Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) for the proposed speed limit may then be made in
conjunction with the introduction of engineered measures.

b) Where engineering measures are not appropriate due to the function of the
road or cannot be justified by the history of crashes a TRO may be considered
for a higher limit than that originally proposed which reflects the speed quoted
in paragraph 5.

7. 20mph Speed Limits and Zones

20mph speed limits or zones can positively contribute to quality of life and
encourage healthier modes of transport such as walking or cycling. They can
also help in creating a sense a place, better serving the local communities’
needs. However, to ensure that they are effective, they will only be pursued if
the following general criteria are met: -

a) It can be demonstrated that there are clear benefits to be gained in terms of
casualty reduction, particularly involving vulnerable road users;

b) The lower limit is an integral part of either an area wide traffic calming
scheme, a School/ Community Safety Zone or a Town Centre Management
Scheme; and

c) The lower limit is effectively self-enforcing

‘Page 12




Local Speed Limits — PS05/02

Proposed Speed Limit Criteria — Route Assessment
Below gives an indication of appropriate speed limits, reference should be made to the latest
Department for Transport guidance for more detailed information.

Appendix A

SPEED LIMIT/
CHARACTER OF
ENVIRONMENT

CHARACTER OF ROAD

TRAFFIC COMPOSITION

20 mph Speed Limit

Town centres, residential
areas, in the vicinity of
schools

Constrained in terms of
vehicle movement with
existing conditions or
engineered features
influencing vehicle speed
with available alternative
routes for through traffic

Mean vehicle speed below
24 mph

High proportion of vulnerable
road users in direct conflict
with traffic

30 mph Speed Limits

Built up areas, visible
properties with frontage
access, the road giving a
clear indication to drivers of
the need to reduce speed

Urban streets

Roads through villages and
identified rural settlements
with 20+ visible properties
within a 600m length

Mean vehicle speed below
33mph

Significant number of
vulnerable road users in
conflict with vehicular traffic

40 mph Speed Limits

Less built up areas, set back
properties with frontage
access indicating to drivers
the need to reduce speed

Urban

Suburban distributor roads
buildings set back from the
road

Rural

Roads through villages and
identified rural settlements
over a minimum length of
600m

Mean vehicle speed below
42mph

Urban
Vulnerable road users
segregated from road space

Rural
A noticeable presence of
vulnerable road users

50 mph Speed Limits

Limited frontage
development

Higher quality urban
distributors with few points of
access

Low standard classified
roads

Mean vehicle speed below
52mph

60 mph Speed Limits (Dual Carriageways)

Limited frontage
development

High standard rural classified
roads

Mean vehicle speed below
62mph

Note: Vulnerable road users include pedestrians (particularly children, the elderly and

disabled) and cyclists.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 18 January 2021
	4 Notice of Motion - Safety on the A259
	Speed Limit Policy PS05.02 Appendix 1


